UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.
GENERAL

Economic and Social
Council

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
9 June 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 65t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 15 April 1997, at 6 p.m

Chai r man: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)
CONTENTS
QUESTI ON OF THE VI CLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER DEPENDENT
COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a)  QUESTION OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comm ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-12721 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 6.20 p.m

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER DEPENDENT
COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a)  QUESTION OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (conti nued)

Draft resolution on the situation of hunan rights in Bosnia and Herzegovi na,
the Republic of Croatia and the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia (Serbia and

Mont enegro) (E/ CN. 4/1997/L. 88)

1. M. SMTH (United States), introducing the draft resolution, said there
were a nunmber of corrections to be made. In operative paragraph 13 (b), the
wor ds “ Eur opean Commi ssion Mnitoring M ssion” should be replaced by “European
Comunity Monitoring Mssion”; in paragraphs 13 (b) and 28 (b), the words
“Comm ssion of Enquiry” should be replaced by “Council of Europe”; and in

par agraph 22 (g), “1996” should be replaced by “1997”

2. Nearly 17 months after the signing of the Dayton Peace Agreement,

an uneasy calmprevailed in Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia and the

Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, and there were disturbing signs that the
parties to the Agreenent and extremi sts on all sides had failed to

i mpl ement the human rights safeguards which it had called for. He reviewed
the main features of the draft resolution, which were contained in operative
par agraphs 2, 3, 13 (a), 15, 22 and 32-42.

3. The draft resolution was intended to convey to the concerned parties the
poi nt that the international conmmunity expected themto nake greater efforts
to protect human rights and to honour the commtnents that they had nade. The
Governments concerned, and the authorities of the Republika Srpska, nust
redouble their efforts to protect all their citizens, put and end to viol ence
and human rights viol ati ons based on ethnic and religious hatred, and work
towards a society where the rule of |aw prevail ed

4, Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Comm ssion) announced that Al bania, France,
Li echtenstein, Luxenbourg, New Zeal and, Portugal, Slovakia and Spain had
j oi ned the sponsors of the draft resolution

5. M. SOCANEC (Observer for Croatia) said the draft resolution did not
realistically reflect the human rights situation in the countries concerned
because it failed to take into account the root causes of the war or to
indicate clearly those responsible for, and the victinms of, serious breaches
of international humanitarian | aw.

6. He objected to the wording of paragraph 27 (b), which called on the
Government of the Republic of Croatia to allow the expeditious return to their
honmes in all regions, in particular to the Krajina, of all refugees and

di spl aced persons. Such a return could only be gradual and proportionate to
confi dence-buil di ng neasures and econoni c reconstructi on; noreover, his
Government could not be held responsible for the decision of ethnic Serbs who
did not wish to return to Croatia. The term “Krajina” was not recognized by



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 3

the Croatian Governnent; it had been coined by the self-proclainmed Croatian
Serb authorities in reference to the territories of the Republic of Croatia
whi ch they had occupi ed.

7. Wth regard to the possibility of a mass exodus from eastern Sl avoni a,
he noted that the President of the Security Council had stated on 7 March 1997
that the | ocal Serb authorities were partially responsible for the |oca

i nhabi tants' decision whether or not to remain in the region. The Croatian
Governnment had frequently appealed to residents of that region to remain and
had cal |l ed upon citizens to vote in order to achieve peaceful reintegration

8. He rem nded the Commi ssion that the procedures established in Rome

on 18 February 1996 concerning the arrest, detention and trial of persons for
violations of international humanitarian | aw concerned the inplenentation of
the General Framework for Peace in Bosnia and Herzegovina and that Croatia was
not bound by it.

9. The draft resolution should have nentioned positive devel opnents in the
Republic of Croatia, such as its admission to the Council of Europe and the
establishnent at the governmental |evel of a number of institutions for the
protection of human rights. Croatia attached great inportance to the issue of
m ssing persons and regretted the resignation of the expert for the specia
process on m ssing persons in the territory of the former Yugoslavia and the
fact that the draft resolution would discontinue that process.

10. Lastly, his Covernnent considered it unnecessary to extend the nandate
of the Special Rapporteur beyond the date of Croatia's ratification of the
Eur opean Convention for the Protection of Human Ri ghts and Fundament a
Freedonms and the protocols thereto, which would occur no later than

Novenber 1997.

11. M. MALGUI NOV (Russian Federation) said that while he appreciated the
openness which had prevailed during consultations on the draft resolution and
the contribution of the original sponsor, the United States, the draft was not
obj ective, balanced or accurate and failed to take into consideration sonme of
the conplexities of the post-conflict period. As in the past, the situation
in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia was evaluated in a one-sided manner
particularly with regard to Kosovo and the nmeasures taken by the Governnent in
order to guarantee the rights and freedons of citizens and w den di al ogue with
i nternational human rights bodies. The draft resolution also made

unsubstanti ated al l egati ons of discrimnatory |egislation and governmenta
nmeasur es.

12. The purpose of Conmi ssion resolutions was to raise the |evel of
protection of human rights and to avoid encouragi ng acts of viol ence or
separatism The fact that various nanes, facts and events were nentioned out
of context in the draft precluded an objective assessnent of the situation

The references to the “Federal Republic of Yugoslavia” were anachronistic and,
in future, should be brought into line with the practice agreed upon by the
majority of States. Myreover, that country's nenbership of internationa
organi zations should | ong since have been restored yet the resolution appeared
to take the opposite approach



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 4

13. He neverthel ess supported the call for all States in the territory of
the former Yugoslavia to ensure the protection of human rights, overcone the
post-conflict syndrome and seek nutually acceptable solutions to their

probl ems. He wel coned the constructive statenent nade by the representative
of the United States in his introduction of the draft resolution

14. For the above-nentioned reasons, his del egation requested a roll-cal
vote on paragraphs 18, 29 (d), (f), (g) and (h), and 31 and asked that those
par agr aphs should be voted on jointly. Hi s delegation would abstain in that
vote but was prepared to join the consensus on the resolution as a whole.

15. M. PETRESKI (Observer for the forner Yugoslav Republic of Macedoni a)
stated that the proper nanme of his country was the Republic of Macedonia. His
Governnment took the view that the international community should devel op

di fferent approaches to human rights nmonitoring in order to find solutions to
genui ne probl enms and conmend positive exanples. It welconed the constructive
di al ogue which it had had with the Special Rapporteur and was pleased to note
that the inportant progress in the human rights situation in his country had
been recogni zed. It considered that respect for human rights was a legitimte
concern of the international comunity and, in that regard, wel coned
cooperation with international organizations within the framework of the
regul ar mechani snms and institutions of which it was a nenber and which were
based on the principle of equality of States and respect for the specific
features of individual States. It therefore welconmed the reconmendation in
the draft resolution that consideration of the Republic of Macedonia in the
Speci al Rapporteur's mandate shoul d be discontinued no |ater than the end of
Sept enber 1997

16. M. FADZAN (Observer for Bosnia and Herzegovina) said his del egation
considered the text of draft resolution E/ CN 4/1997/L.88 acceptabl e because it
covered the inportant aspects of the problem including use of the correct
name for the former Republic of Yugoslavia (Serbia and Montenegro), and

t hanked the del egation of the United States for its contribution to the

achi evenent of consensus on the text within the five-nation contact group

17. However, there was a lack of political will to stand firmy behind the
principles expressed in the Dayton Peace Agreenent and to provide a rea
response to the al nost catastrophic situation of human rights in the three
countries concerned. Because there were political obstacles to acceptance of
the cause-and-effect relationship with regard to human rights violations in
those countries, the action taken to prevent such violations was in the nature
of a | owest possible common denomni nat or

18. Hi s del egation reiterated its support for the Special Rapporteur’'s nost
recent statenment nade before the Conmm ssion, which had contained suggestions
for principles and activities that could nove the peace process beyond its
current stalemate and lead to reconciliation and reconstruction of a

mul ti-ethnic, denocratic, |iberal and tolerant civil society in Bosnia and
Her zegovi na

19. M. TARM DZI (I ndonesia), speaking on behalf of the Organization of the
Islami c Conference (O C), said the OC nenber States considered that the




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 5

draft resolution was insufficiently focused, weak and unlikely to acconplish
its objectives. However, they would not stand in the way of consensus on its
adopti on.

20. M. COVMBA (Centre for Human Rights), explaining the financial

i mplications of the draft resolution, said that extension of the nandate

of the Special Rapporteur for one year (para. 42) would require an

al l ocation of US$ 112,200 under section 21 of the programe budget for the

bi enni um 1996-1997. The budgetary requirenents for the first quarter of 1998
woul d be included in the proposed programe budget for the biennium 1998-1999.

21. M. van WULFFTEN PALTHE ( Net herl ands), speaking in explanation of vote
before the voting, said his del egation appreciated the inportance of draft
resolution L.88 for the advancenent of human rights in the countries
concerned. However, with regard to the section on mssing persons, his

del egation regretted that no effort had been made to namintain the specia
process on m ssing persons, granting it a clear nandate and the full backing
of the world community, and that the expert for the special process had been
conpelled to resign. The section on mssing persons did not reflect the

i nternational community's commtment to solving the many renaining cases of
m ssing persons in the region, notably through exhumati on and identification
of nortal remains, and assigned that task to so many agenci es that genui ne
action appeared inpossible. The Netherlands was, therefore, unable to becone
a sponsor of the draft resolution as in previous years but would not oppose
its adoption.

22. Ms. RIVERO (Uruguay), speaking in explanation of vote before the voting,
said that while her delegation would join the consensus on the draft
resolution, it was concerned at the term nation of the mandate of the expert
for the special process and believed that nmuch remained to be done in that
area. It also feared that the nmany tasks entrusted to the Special Rapporteur
m ght make it difficult for her to fulfil her mandate effectively.

23. At the request of the representative of the Russian Federation, a vote
was taken by roll-call on paragraphs 18, 29 (d). (f). (g) and (h). and 31

jointly.

24. Irel and, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman, was called upon to
vote first.
In favour: Al geria, Argentina, Austria, Bangladesh, Benin, Bhutan,

Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, Chile, Czech Republic, Dennmark,
Dom ni can Republic, Ecuador, Egypt, El Sal vador, France,
Gabon, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Ml aysia,

Net her |l ands, Ni caragua, Pakistan, Philippines, Republic of
Korea, South Africa, Uganda, Ukraine, United Ki ngdom
United States, Uruguay, Zaire.

Agai nst : None

Abst ai ni ng: Angol a, Bel arus, Cape Verde, China, Col onmbia, Cuinea,
I ndi a, |Indonesia, Madagascar, Mali, Mexico, Mdzanbi que,
Nepal , Russi an Federation, Sri Lanka, Zi nbabwe.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 6

25. Paragraphs 18, 29 (d)., (f)., (g) and (h), and 31 were adopted by 35 votes
to 0, with 16 abstentions.

26. Draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.88, as anended, was adopted wi thout a
vote.

Draft resolution on human rights in Zaire (E/ CN.4/1997/L. 89)

27. M. van WULFFTEN PALTHE (Netherlands), introducing the draft resol ution
said that the political situation in Zaire was changing rapidly and a

negoti ated solution to the conflict remained out of reach. The draft
resolution called upon all parties concerned to show restraint, respect the
terms of the denocratic transition process, seek a political solution and
refrain fromfurther violence. The sponsors were deeply concerned at the
human rights situation in Zaire, and particularly the continued inpunity
enjoyed by the army and the security forces, arbitrary deprivation of
nationality, and the continued |ack of political, civil, economc, social and
cultural rights.

28. They wel coned the opening of the office of the United Nations

H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights in Kinshasa and call ed upon the authorities
to cooperate fully with that office, its human rights observers and the
Speci al Rapporteur. A new elenment in the draft was the Comm ssion's decision
to field a joint mssion consisting of the Special Rapporteurs on the
situation of human rights in Zaire and on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary
executions and a nenber of the Wbrking G oup on Enforced or Involuntary

Di sappearances, to investigate allegations of nmassacres and other issues

af fecting human rights which arose fromthe conflict in eastern Zaire

(para. 6). He thanked the Zairian delegation for its constructive
participation in the negotiations on the draft resolution

29. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Conmm ssion) announced that Argentina,
Australia, Estonia, Japan, Norway, Poland, Slovakia and Switzerland had joi ned
the sponsors of the draft resolution

30. M. MIUME (Zaire) said that his country was experiencing a major
political upheaval and a serious econonic and social crisis; the war against
the Zairian people had spread to 7 of the country's 11 provinces.

31. The three reports submitted to the Commr ssion by the Special Rapporteur
whi ch had forned the basis of the draft resolution, did not reflect the
progress nmade in various areas of civil and political rights or in the
transition to denocracy which had been interrupted by war in the eastern part
of the country and which was to have culmnated in a general election in

May 1997. The establishnment of the National Electoral Commi ssion and the

of fice of the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Human Rights in Kinshasa
denonstrated the Zairian Governnment's willingness to cooperate with the

United Nations in the process of denocratization and the pronotion of human
rights. The failure of the United Nations and the Special Rapporteur to issue
an official and tinmely condemmation of the massacres and viol ati ons of human
rights and international humanitarian law in eastern Zaire nmade their recent
expressions of indignation and anger at the plight of the Rwandan refugees and
di spl aced Zairians appear hypocritical and even cynical. Furthernore, the



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 7

guestion of nationality was a matter of State sovereignty and was not subject
to interference fromthe international conmunity or the Conmm ssion. Any
problenms in that regard shoul d be sol ved through dial ogue within the framework
of the international conventions to which Zaire was a party; however, that
procedure could in no way legitimze fraudul ent acquisition of Zairian
nationality.

32. Continuation of the process of denocratization with a viewto the
establishment of the rule of |law and the international community's support for
the rehabilitation of Zaire, particularly the eastern part of the country,
were the best guarantees of inproved protection of human rights there. The
Nat i onal Commi ssion for the Pronption and Protection of Human Ri ghts shoul d be
strengthened in cooperation with civil society and human rights organi zati ons.
To that end, his CGovernnent hoped to contact the Hi gh Comn ssioner for Human
Ri ghts and the country's other partners in order to set up a technica
cooperation programre ai ned at strengthening national human rights
institutions. The effectiveness of the fact-finding m ssion on massacres and
human rights violations in eastern Zaire, |ong requested by his Government,
woul d depend on the speed with which it was carried out and its results
publ i shed.

33. M. LI BAODONG (China) said the conflict in Zaire constituted a mjor

di saster for its own citizens and the refugees stranded in the eastern part of
the country and posed a threat to peace and stability in the Geat Lakes
region and the entire continent. The Organization of African Unity (OAU) had
recently convened a special sunmit in Lomé in order to seek a solution to the
crisis. His Government supported the efforts of the OAU, the United Nations
and other African countries in that regard and it urged the parties concerned
to put an end to the conflict through peaceful negotiation in the interest of
Zaire's devel opment and the protection of human rights.

34. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt) wel coned the efforts to put an end to the tragedy and
human rights violations in Zaire by the neans described in the draft
resolution. O particular inportance were preparations for the forthcom ng
el ections, areturn to political stability and reconstruction, all of which
woul d require a solution to the country's donestic problenms on the basis of

i ndependence, unity and preservation of its borders. Such a solution would
make it possible for displaced persons and refugees to return to their hones
and for human rights organi zations to do their work. Hi s delegation would
vote in favour of the draft resolution and called on the Governnent of Zaire
to cooperate with the H gh Conm ssioners for Human Rights in ensuring

meti cul ous inplementation of its provisions.

35. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) said it was inportant for QAU nediation in Zaire

as denonstrated at the recent sunmit in Lomé, to continue. Hi's own country
was actively engaged in negotiations ainmed at encouragi ng nationa
reconciliation in that country. The current problenms were a | egacy of the
colonial era and resulted frominterference by non-African Powers. |If African
wi sdom was to prevail and the Zairians were to find their own ways of ensuring
the return of the refugees and preventing ethnic strife, those external Powers
must refrain fromattenpting to determ ne who woul d govern the country.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 8

36. M. COVMBA (Centre for Human Rights), explaining the financial
implications of the draft resolution, said the costs of the joint mssion by
the Speci al Rapporteurs on the situation of human rights in Zaire and on
extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions and a nenber of the Wrking
Group on Enforced or Involuntary Di sappearances (para. 6 (a)) would be met

t hrough voluntary contributions. Extension of the nmandate of the Specia
Rapporteur for one year (para. 6 (c)) would require an allocation of

US$ 88, 600 under section 21 of the programme budget for the biennium

1996- 1997. The budgetary requirenents for the first quarter of 1998 woul d be
i ncluded in the proposed programme budget for the biennium 1998-1999.

37. Draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.89 was adopted wi thout a vote.

Draft resolution on the situation of hunan rights in the Sudan
(E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ L. 90)

38. Ms. RUBIN (United States), introducing the draft resolution, said the
sponsors believed that, as in previous years, the text accurately reflected
the grievous conditions and activities that continued to exist in the Sudan

On the other hand, they appreciated the spirit of cooperation displayed by the
Sudanese del egati on, which, by accepting the | anguage of the resolution, had
implicitly recognized the gravity of the situation and acknow edged that some
agents of the Sudanese authorities had authorized or conmtted some of the

wor st human rights violations in the country.

39. The next step was for the Government to inplenment the recommendati ons
made in the draft resolution and by the special and thematic rapporteurs and
to all ow the Special Rapporteur to return to the Sudan and visit all parts of
the country. The Governnment nust follow through on its comm tnent to conduct
or permt a thorough investigation of possible human rights violations in the
Sudan and to share the results of those investigations with its own people and
the Comm ssion. Those responsible for human rights violations nmust be tried
in accordance with internationally acceptable standards and, if found guilty,
puni shed under the law. She noted that the Governnent had expressed its

wi |l lingness to seek technical assistance fromthe Centre for Human Ri ghts and
ot her appropriate bodies.

40. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Conmm ssion) announced that Argentina,
Bel gium France, Geece, Ireland, Israel, Japan, Liechtenstein and Luxenbourg
had j oi ned the sponsors of the draft resol ution

41. M. EL MJFTI (Observer for the Sudan) expressed his appreciation to the
del egation of the United States for agreeing to include some positive elenents
in the text of the draft resolution. However, the draft contai ned many
unverified allegations of violations, and sone of the | anguage used was based
on msinformation derived fromreports and statements by NGOs allied with
arnmed rebel factions. In view of the explanation provided by his Governnent,
whi ch had been intended to inaugurate a new era of cooperation with the
Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the Sudan, the negative
references in the draft resolution to the Special Rapporteur’'s nobst recent
visit and to the circunmstances surrounding its term nation were inappropriate.
Lastly, his delegation had repeatedly expressed its objections to the

pl acenent of human rights field officers, as proposed in paragraphs 25 and 26,




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 9

since the Sudan was guaranteeing a regular flow of information and had shown

its willingness to deal with and correct any proven human rights viol ations.

I nsi stence on such neasures was not conducive to the pronotion and protection
of human rights or to the cooperation required in that context.

42. M. COVMBA (Centre for Human Rights), explaining the financial
implications of the draft resolution, said that extension of the nmandate of
the Speci al Rapporteur for one year (para. 20) would require an allocation of
US$ 73, 400 under section 21 of the programme budget for the biennium

1996- 1997. The budgetary requirenents for the first quarter of 1998 woul d be
i ncluded in the proposed programme budget for the biennium 1998-1999.

43. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt), speaking in explanation of vote before the voting,
stressed the need to ensure observance, and condemn all violations, of human
rights and fundanmental freedons in all parts of the world. His delegation had
often stated that the Comm ssion should not countenance doubl e standards and
selectivity or consider matters beyond its nandate. Although it was inportant
to ensure respect for human rights and fundanmental freedons, it was essentia
to respect the sovereignty of the Sudan. The authorities of the Sudan must

al so maintain neighbourly relations with other States and not interfere in
their affairs or foster terrorism

44, If there was a separate vote on paragraph 25 of the draft resolution
whi ch recommended that priority should be given to the placenent of human
rights field officers to nonitor the situation of human rights in the Sudan
hi s del egation woul d vote against it because the political and | ega

i mplications of the placenent of such observers were not clear. |If the draft
resolution was put to a vote, his del egati on woul d abst ai n.

45. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) said he shared with other del egations the hope that
the Sudanese Governnment would commit itself to respect for denpcratic freedons
and human rights. However, he regretted that the frequent references in the
draft resolution to the activities of terrorist groups in various parts of the
country attributed such activities only to the Governnent rather than to the
non- St ate el enents which were, in fact, invol ved

46. He shared the representative of Egypt's views concerning article 25 of
the draft resolution. Traditionally, all thematic and special rapporteurs
were under the control of the Commi ssion; however, the words “under the
nodalities and with the objectives suggested by the Special Rapporteur” woul d
give full autonony to the Special Rapporteur, thereby threatening State
sovereignty. Unless that paragraph was anended, his del egati on woul d abstain
in the vote on the draft resolution

47. Draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.90 was adopted wi thout a vote.

Draft resolution on the situation of human rights in China (E/ CN. 4/1997/L.91)

48. M. LEHVANN (Denmark), introducing the draft resolution, said that al
States Menbers of the United Nations were obliged under the Charter and other
applicable instruments to protect human rights and fundamental freedons and
shoul d be held accountable for the international human rights standards they
had endor sed.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 10

49. The draft resolution recognized the fact that China was a party to
various international instrunents and that it had succeeded in enhancing its
peopl e's enjoynment of their economc rights. The Chinese Government's recent
announcenent that it would soon sign the International Covenant on Econom c,
Social and Cultural Rights was a welcone first step towards accession to that

i nstrument. However, the Comm ssion could no |onger remain silent in the face
of continued reports of violations of basic civil and political rights,

i ncludi ng freedom of assenbly, association, expression and religion and the
right to due process and a fair trial. The plight of the Tibetans was a
further concern

50. The sponsors considered that it was tinme for the H gh Comnr ssioner

for Human Rights to enter into dialogue with the Chinese Government in
accordance with his mandate under paragraph 4 (g) of General Assenbly
resolution 48/141 (1993). The H gh Comnmi ssioner was, in turn, asked to report
to the Comm ssion on the progress of that dialogue. The sponsors did not w sh
the draft resolution to be interpreted as confrontational in nature. The
proposed di al ogue fell within the mandate of the Hi gh Comm ssi oner which had
the approval of the Chinese Government; noreover, such bilateral dialogue in
no way excluded nultilateral dialogue with other parties. Lastly, he noted

t hat paragraph 4 of the Vienna Declaration and Programe of Action stated that
the promotion and protection of all human rights constituted a legitimte
concern of the international conmunity.

51. M. WJ Jiannin (China) said that draft resolution E/ CN 4/1997/L.91 was
the seventh of its kind to be placed before the Commi ssion by certain Wstern
countries. It was a gross distortion of reality to assert that China had a
depl orabl e human rights record. That had i ndeed been the case prior to the
1949 Revol ution, the very purpose of which had been to make the Chi nese people
the masters of their own destiny. China' s ongoing nodernization programe was
in essence a war agai nst poverty, backwardness and hunger. Since 1978, when
the country had begun to inplenment its policy of reform nearly 200 mllion
peopl e had been lifted out of poverty. Over the past 20 years, over 300 | aws
and regul ati ons had been adopted by China's | egislative body and nore than
4,000 regul ati ons had been passed by | ocal people's congresses. His country
had made unprecedented progress towards the establishment of denbcracy and a

| egal system and his Governnment had nade trenendous efforts to pronote the
civil, political, economic, social and cultural rights of the Chinese people.

52. The real purpose of certain Western countries in repeatedly proposing
anti-China resolutions was to attenpt to dominate China's fate in what was
perhaps a | egacy of the colonial era. Since the initiation of reform China
had sent hundreds of thousands of students abroad in order to learn from

ot hers. However, many countries which had foll owed the pattern prescribed by
the West were currently facing econom c coll apse, war and internal strife,
which were in sharp contrast to the increasing prosperity of China. |If

1 per cent of the Chinese population had fled the country as a result of a
simlar crisis, the result would have been an overnight disaster for Asia and
the entire world as 12 million people flooded into east Asia. The Chinese
peopl e had foll owed their own path for over 5,000 years. No force on earth,
et alone a few anti-China draft resolutions, could stop the country's

1.2 billion people from advanci ng.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 11

53. It was sheer denmgogy to claimthat the no-action nmotion proposed by his
del egation constituted a request for special treatment or non-cooperation
China had ratified or acceded to 17 international human rights instrunents,
reported periodically to the treaty bodi es and respected their views. The
Commi ssion voted on draft resolutions approxi mately one week after it began
consi deration of human rights situations in the country concerned. During

t hat week, China had becone the focus of attack by certain Western countries,
whi ch clainmed that the annual Chinese no-action notion did not conformto the
rul es of procedure. |In fact, no-action notions were proposed at the neetings
of many United Nations bodies and were clearly provided for in the rules of
procedure: they had been proposed in the Conm ssion on six occasions during
t he past seven years.

54. He appealed to the countries which had subnitted the draft resolution to
return to the path of dial ogue and cooperation. The draft was a foolish act
whi ch went against the trend of history; tinme was on the side of the Chinese,
and he advised the sponsors to give up their doomed cause or suffer repeated
defeat. It did not matter that States disagreed on human rights issues; what
was i nmportant was to resolve those differences through dial ogue on the basis
of equality. The draft resolution was directed not only at China, but at al
devel opi ng and justice-loving countries.

55. Hi s del egati on accordingly proposed, in accordance with rule 65 (2) of
the rules of procedure, that the Conm ssion should take no action on draft
resolution L.91 and requested a roll-call vote on that notion. |t appealed to

del egations to support that notion since what had happened to China coul d one
day happen to their own countries.

56. The CHAI RMAN announced that the follow ng 14 speakers wi shed to explain
their votes before the voting.

57. M. BAUM (Germany) said his delegation took the view that the Comm ssion
was fully entitled to discuss and take action on human rights situations in
all parts of the world. Al menbers of the Commi ssion had been present at the
conference which had resulted in the Vienna Declaration and Programme of
Action, in which it had been established that the situation of human rights in
any country was a legitimte concern of the international comunity. Menbers
of the Commi ssion had a particular responsibility for the pronotion and
protection of human rights and shoul d ensure that each situation was dealt
with onits nmerits. As in previous years, his del egati on woul d vote agai nst
the procedural notion proposed by China.

58. M. SHATTUCK (United States) said his delegation did not seek
confrontation with China and believed the Comm ssion was an appropriate forum
for discussion of the situation of human rights in that country. It objected
to the no-action notion proposed by China because it believed that there were
serious human rights concerns in that country which should be considered by

t he Comm ssion and because it was concerned that any effort to bypass the
Commi ssion mght undermine its integrity and give the inpression that its
menbers were indifferent to the very principles that it was charged with
defendi ng. By voting against the Chinese notion, nmenbers would keep faith

wi th wonmen and nen around the world who had suffered for daring to stand up
for denocracy and freedom




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 12

59. Ms. ANDERSON (Ireland) said her del egation associated itself with the
statenment made by the representative of Denmark. She recognized that every
country represented in the Commi ssion had its own history and individuality
but hoped that they shared a readi ness to recogni ze probl ens where they

exi sted and to di scuss ways of addressing themtogether. There was no
guestion of inposing a national or regional perspective; the Universa

Decl arati on of Human Ri ghts, the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action
and the internationally accepted human rights instruments provided a shared
basis for discussion. Menbership of the Conm ssion entailed both rights and
obligations, and the Conmi ssion would fail the international conmunity if it
al l omed procedural devices to block discussion of issues of substance. She
therefore urged the nenbers of the Comm ssion to vote agai nst the no-action
notion and in favour of the draft resolution

60. M. GOONETILLEKE (Sri Lanka) said that no-action notions were used from
time to tinme by other United Nations bodies, including the General Assenbly,
in cases where the ngjority of the menbers did not think that adoption of a
draft resolution was the best way to achieve results. Having nmade severa
unsuccessful attenpts to introduce draft resolutions on the situation of human
rights in China, the sponsors should have sought alternative ways of
persuadi ng China to inprove that situation through consultation, dialogue and
cooperation. Paragraph 1 of the draft acknow edged that there had been

i nprovenent in that regard, and the Conmi ssion should encourage China to
continue to nmake progress rather than supporting a resolution which could not
produce the desired result.

61. Hi s del egation therefore supported the no-action notion and hoped t hat
during the next year, the interested parties would attenpt to engage China in
genui ne dialogue with a view to inproving the human rights situation in that
country.

62. M. TOSCANO (Italy) said that, once again, the Commi ssion had before it
a no-action notion ainmed at preventing its nmenbers from expressing their

opi nion on a draft resol ution which unquestionably fell within its nmandate and
conpetence. Wil e consensus was desirable and cooperation and
non-confrontati on should be the Commi ssion's main goals, its nmenbers should be
abl e to express disagreenent, when necessary, by voting. His delegation would
vot e agai nst the no-action notion

63. M. KONl SH (Japan) said he had already stated his del egation's position
on human rights in China. While Japan attached great inportance to dial ogue
and techni cal cooperation and had not beconme a sponsor of the draft

resolution, it considered that the pronotion and protection of human rights
was a legitimte concern of the international conmmunity and that the

Commi ssion had a particular responsibility in that regard. Hi s del egation was
therefore unable to support the no-action notion

64. M. BERNARD (France) said he agreed with previous speakers that the
Commi ssion's right to consider the situation of human rights in any country
shoul d be respected by all nenbers. His delegation would vote against the
no-acti on notion



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 13

65. M. ALl (Ml aysia) said the fact that the draft resolution on the human
rights situation in China had been rejected for the past six years showed that
t he Conmi ssion saw no need to consider it. A constructive approach to the
pronmoti on and protection of human rights through dial ogue was far nore |ikely
to achieve results. His delegation would vote in favour of the no-action
not i on.

66. M_. HYNES (Canada) said the draft resolution and the no-action notion
presented a dilemua for many nmenbers of the Conmi ssion. At the procedura

| evel, there was no good reason why the Conmi ssion should not proceed, as it
had done in many other situations, to direct action on the nmerits of the draft
resol ution or why China should be treated differently fromany other country.
On the other hand, there was, in fact, a difference between China and other
countries; it was the nost populous nation on earth, a major political and
econom ¢ Power, and a pernmanent nenber of the Security Council, and its people
and Governnment had a right to be proud of their crucial role in the

i nternational community. At the same time, there were serious grounds for
concern at China's failure to live up to its international obligations.

67. Canada had decided not to sponsor the draft resolution in 1997 but,

i nstead, to seek other ways of addressing the problemin order to bring about
positive change with regard to respect for human rights in China. It hoped
that the relevant negotiations would be both bilateral and multilateral in
nature and expected China to follow up on its conmtnent to broaden
cooperation with the United Nations in the field of human rights.
Neverthel ess, his del egation considered that the Commi ssion should not be
prevented fromtaking a decision on the nerits of the draft resolution. It
woul d therefore vote against the no-action nmotion and, should the draft
resolution cone to a vote, would vote in favour of it.

68. M. PERREIRA (Angola) said the fact that the draft resolution had been
rejected for the past six years showed that it was unnecessary; noreover, the
wordi ng of the current version was virtually identical to that of previous
years. His delegation failed to understand why sone countries persisted in
wasting tinme and m susing United Nations resources in such a futile exercise
and woul d support the no-action notion

69. M. KRAVETZ (El Salvador) said his del egati on would vote agai nst the
no-acti on notion because it considered that such notions were, in principle,

i ncompatible with the Commi ssion's duty to pronote human rights throughout the
wor | d.

70. M. STROHAL (Austria) said the no-action notion was unacceptable in
princi pl e because it presupposed the substantive inconpetence of the

Conmmi ssion, despite the fact that the question of the violation of human
rights in any part of the world had been an item on the Conmi ssion's agenda
for many years. The no-action notion could be appropriate only in the context
of rule 65 of the rules of procedure, which dealt with situations where two or
nore proposals on a single topic had been submitted to the Conm ssion; that
did not apply to draft resolution L.91. There were no grounds for arguing
that the draft resolution was in any way beyond the purview of the Comm ssion
and, in any case, all Covernnents represented at the Vienna Conference had
agreed that the promption and protection of human rights was a legitimate



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 14

concern of the international comunity. The draft resolution was pronpted not
by a wish to donminate, but by legitimte concern and a constructive spirit of
cooperation. His delegation therefore urged all nenbers to vote against the
no-action nmotion in order to preserve the credibility of the Comm ssion, the
right of its nenbers to take a position on the substance of draft

resolution L.91 and the cause of human rights.

71. M. Joun Yung SUN (Republic of Korea) said that while his del egation
recogni zed that there was room for inprovenent in the human rights situation
in China, it was encouraged by the efforts made by that country, notably in
the area of codification of legal practice. It interpreted the Chinese
Governnment's willingness to sign the International Covenant on Economi c,
Social and Cultural Rights in 1997 as a sign of its commtnment in that regard
and wel coned the Governnent's readi ness to exchange information on human
rights issues. His delegation was convinced of the inportance of dial ogue as
a nmeans of resolving such issues and woul d abstain in the vote on the
no-acti on notion

72. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) said he shared other del egations' concern for the
situation of human rights throughout the world. No country, whatever its
degree of econom c, social or cultural devel opment, could claimto instruct
another in that regard. He was disturbed by the fact that draft

resolution L.91 was not the result of consensus or extensive consultations

ai med at avoiding confrontation. |Its sponsors were essentially the States of
the Western world and, as the nedia had widely reported, even they had

di sagreed on its substance.

73. It was true that the no-action notion bl ocked debate; however, such a
noti on was pernmitted under the rules of procedure, which had been agreed by
all nenbers of the Commission. The draft resolution had been rejected for the
past six years and, throughout that tinme, there had been no general will to

i mpl enent rule 77 or 78 of the rules of procedure by anmending or suspending
any of its rules. The clainms of sonme del egations to be uphol ding denocratic
practice were nmerely a pretext for trying to advance their own position by
amendi ng the Conmittee's procedure. The Chinese del egation was fully entitled
to assert its rights under the rules of procedure, and his own del egation
woul d vote in favour of the no-action notion

74. M. KRPAC (Czech Republic) said he concurred with those del egati ons
particularly those of Ireland and Australia, which had stated that the

Commi ssi on was conpetent to deal with the matter under discussion and that the
no-action notion was inappropriate. H s own del egation would prefer the

Conmmi ssion to engage in a substantive discussion of the issue, as was usua
under agenda item 10, rather than adopting the procedural notion proposed by
Chi na.

75. M. van WULFFTEN PALTHE (Net herl ands) said there was nothing inherently
illegal about no-action notions. He could not support the Al gerian
representative's suggestion that the Comm ssion should anend its rul es of
procedure in order to renove that possibility. However, the no-action notion
was designed to allow United Nations bodies to avoid dealing with extraneous
i ssues, and it could hardly be argued that the situation of human rights in
Chi na was extraneous to the Commission. A country |ike China, which was




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 15

| arge, important and a permanent menber of the Security Council, had a specia
responsibility and, by seeking to abuse the Conm ssion's rules of procedure in
order to avoid debate on its own situation, set a bad exanple for the

Organi zation as a whole and those of its menbers which sought serious debate
not only on human rights, but on other issues as well. No other country
abused the no-action nmotion in that way, and he hoped that China had done so
for the last tine.

76. M. ALFONSO MARTINEZ (Cuba) said that the no-action notion was the best
way of combating an initiative which had nothing to do with current reality in
Chi na and introduced an el enment of confrontation which, rather than
encouragi ng internati onal cooperation, could only worsen the already
politicized atnosphere of the Comm ssion

77. Rul e 65 of the rules of procedure had existed |ong before 1971, when
China's legitimate position in the United Nations had been restored. It was
not true that that rule was intended to be used only when nore than one
resolution on a single topic had been placed before the Comm ssion; rather, as
the representative of Sri Lanka had said, it could be invoked whenever the
majority of the menbers of the Conmm ssion considered that a draft resolution
or decision was not the best way of addressing a problem A no-action notion
in no way inplied the Conmi ssion was not conpetent to deal with an issue;

no one doubted its conpetence to study the situation of human rights in any
Menmber State. Furthernore, the representative of the Netherlands had been
wrong in stating that China was abusing the proper function of the no-action
motion. The real abuse was to conpel the Conmi ssion year after year to face
the issue of a draft resolution which it did not wish to consider. Rejection
of the draft resolution strengthened, rather than calling into question, the
credibility of the Comm ssion and, since such a notion required the approva
of the mgjority, it was in no way undenocrati c.

78. M. SI MKHADA (Nepal) said his del egation had consistently maintained
that singling out a country or group of countries was not conducive to

i nprovenent of the human rights situation unless what was involved were
persistent, blatant human rights violations in which due process was
consistently flouted. As a close neighbour of China, Nepal had been in a
position to witness all the changes in that society. China had anply
denonstrated its willingness to engage in dial ogue and cooperation with a view
to further inprovenent. His delegation therefore associated itself with the
statenment made by the representative of Sri Lanka and woul d support the
no-acti on notion

79. M. STEEL (United Kingdom said the matter under discussion was not the
human rights record of China, but the right of the Comm ssion to consider a
draft resolution on its nerits. He regretted that, once again, a powerfu
country and permanent nenber of the Security Council whose record in many ways
deserved respect was trying, through pressure and bl andi shnments, to stifle

di scussion of a topic which was of genuine concern to menmbers of the

Conmi ssion and the outside world. No other country, whether the

United States, the Russian Federation, Cuba, Colonbia or, in former years, the
Soviet Union, Chile or South Africa, had sought to dictate to the Comr ssion
in that way.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 16

80. The representative of China had adduced a nunber of fallacious argunents
in support of the no-action notion. He had clainmed that draft resolution L.91
did not fall within the terns of agenda item 10 because the situation of human
rights in China did not reveal a “consistent pattern of gross violations of
human rights”. However, that wordi ng appeared only in subparagraph (b) of the
agenda item the main subject of which was the violation of human rights and
fundamental freedons in any part of the world. He had also stated that the
tabling of the resolution indicated selectivity, but what could be nore

sel ective than to argue that the Conm ssion could discuss human rights

vi ol ati ons anywhere in the world except China? He had clainmed that the draft
resolution | acked objectivity. The question whether it did so could be dealt
wi th during discussion of the draft, at which tine his own del egati on woul d be
pl eased to listen to the Chinese del egation's argunents in that regard.
However, the question had no bearing on the issue of whether that discussion
shoul d be held. Lastly, he hinmself was puzzled by the Chinese
representative's claimthat the draft resolution denonstrated a | ack of
inmpartiality since inpartiality would appear to require that the Conm ssion
shoul d gi ve no special treatnment to any country, whereas China was, in fact,
asking it to do so. Inpartiality also required that any views expressed or
deci sions taken in the Conm ssion should be based on the nerits of the case at
hand rather than on the identity of the country concerned.

81. The representative of Austria had correctly stated that it was a

m sreading to use rule 65 (2) of the rules of procedure as the basis for a
no-action motion. It was clear that the “notion requiring that no decision be
taken on a proposal” in rule 65 (2) referred to a situation where “two or nore
proposals ... relate to the sane question” (rule 65 (1)). The point was not a
technical one. China's no-action notion was, in fact, a conceal ed invocation
of rule 54 of the rules of procedure, which stated that “a nmotion calling for
a decision on the conpetence of the Conm ssion to adopt a proposal submtted
to it shall be put to the vote before a vote is taken on the proposal in
guestion”.

82. Hi s own del egati on considered that the Commi ssion was conpetent to

di scuss the situation of human rights in any country whatever, w thout
prejudice to its ultinate decision on that situation, and invited del egations
to vindicate the conpetence of the Commission and to assert their independence
by voting against the no-action notion

83. M. LEHVANN (Denmark) said draft resolution L.91 could not be viewed as
confrontational since it called upon the Governnent of China to engage in a

di al ogue with the Hi gh Conmi ssioner for Human Ri ghts and requested the High
Conmmi ssioner to report to the Conmi ssion on the progress of that dial ogue.

The no-action notion was, in effect, a challenge to the conpetence and
credibility of the Comm ssion, thus raising an inmportant principle regardless
of any delegation's position on the substantive issues raised in the draft
resolution. The notion introduced an el enment of selectivity which ran counter
to the letter and spirit of the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action

par agraph 32 of which reaffirnmed “the inportance of ensuring the universality,
objectivity and non-selectivity of the consideration of human rights issues”.
A vote against the no-action notion would, therefore, preserve the conpetence
and credibility of the Conmi ssion and its denocratic procedures.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 17

84. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt) said he had al ready conveyed his delegation's views
on the inportance of not applying double standards with regard to human rights
i ssues in various parts of the world and had therefore abstained in the voting
on a nunber of draft resolutions. His delegation took the view that dial ogue
and cooperation were the best way of pronoting human rights and regretted that
it had not been consulted during the preparation of draft resolution L.91, in
contrast with many other draft resolutions which it had been able to support
because the various positions of the Commi ssion's nmenbers and observers had
been taken into consideration. He had noted a certain politicization in the
Commi ssion's debates. It was inportant for the Comm ssion to ensure dial ogue
and transparency in the preparation of draft resolutions and to resort to
voting only where consensus proved inpossible. No del egation should be
deprived of its right to invoke rule 65 (2) of the rules of procedure. For

all those reasons, his del egation would vote in favour of the no-action
not i on.

85. M. CHOADHURY (Bangl adesh) said he had noted with concern the rising
tension and increasing acrinony between del egations. The Comni ssion had maj or
achi evenents of which to be proud and thrusts and parries, while normal in
such a situation, nust be kept within acceptable linmts. The Comm ssion
shoul d testify to the fact that society had conme of age; he knew of no other
body where States and non-States, Governments and NGOs interacted so freely,
yet the Commi ssion could be far nore effective than at present. Draft
resolution L.91 was, perhaps, not the best way of achieving its own goals.
Only di al ogue and consultation could lead to change. Hi s del egation would,
therefore, prefer that no action should be taken on the draft resol ution

86. M. AKRAM (Paki stan) said he had read draft resolution L.91 with regret
and consternati on and hoped that the Comm ssion would reject it as it had done
for the past six years. Under Article 55 of the Charter the Conmi ssion's
primary responsibility was to pronpote stability and friendly relations anong
States. It was clear fromthe debate that the draft resolution was, instead,
likely to pronote confrontation and conflict anmong mej or Powers. Pakistan had
good relations with the sponsors of the draft resolution and with China and
did not wish to see confrontation between them Rule 65 (2) of the rul es of
procedure had been specifically intended to ensure that no action was taken
whi ch was contrary to the Conmi ssion's objectives; it was, therefore,
perfectly appropriate to the situation

87. Some had said that China sought to dictate to the Commission. In
reality, the boot was on the other foot; China had not asked anyone to submt
the draft resolution. Those who sought to dictate to the Comm ssion were
those who persisted in submtting that draft year after year. There were
other, far nore serious, situations of persistent violations of human rights
whi ch the sponsors of the draft resolution, and the Comm ssion as a whol e,
chose to ignore year after year. His own del egati on had brought sonme of those
situations to the attention of nbst of the sponsors and had been told not to
rai se such issues in the Comm ssion because the countries concerned would
refuse to cooperate with the human rights treaty bodies. There was no
guestion that China was being selectively and politically targeted because it
was a mgjor energing Power in Asia and the third world. Anyone who had
visited the country knew that the human rights situation there was inproving
and had w tnessed the transformation in the lives of the Chinese people.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 65
page 18

88. The representative of the Netherlands had expressed the hope that China
had proposed a no-action notion for the last time. He, in turn, hoped that
the sponsors of the dooned draft resolution had placed it before the

Commi ssion for the |ast tine.

89. At the request of the representative of China, a vote was taken by

roll-call on the no-action notion which his del egati on had proposed.

90. Bangl adesh, havi ng been drawn by lot by the Chairnan,

was called upon to

vote first.

In favour: Al geria, Angol a, Bangl adesh, Bel arus, Benin, Bhutan

Cape Verde, China, Col ombia, Cuba, Egypt,

Et hi opi a, Gabon,

Qui nea, India, Indonesia, Madagascar, Mal aysia, Mli,

Mozambi que, Nepal, Pakistan, Sri Lanka,
Zi mbabwe, Zaire

Uganda, UKr ai ne,

Agai nst : Austria, Bulgaria, Canada, Chile, Czech Republic, Dennmark,
El Sal vador, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Japan
Net her |l ands, Ni caragua, South Africa, United Ki ngdom

United States.

Abst ai ning: Argentina, Brazil, Dom nican Republic, Ecuador, Mexico,
Phi |'i ppi nes, Republic of Korea, Russian Federation

Ur uguay.

91. The no-action notion proposed by China was adopted by 27 votes to 17,

with 9 abstentions.

The neeting rose at 9.20 p. m




